1983

John Call and Clark Jenkins v. City of West Jordan : Brief of Appellants

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellants (hereafter Call) are subdividers. Call sought permission to sell subdivision lots in the City of West Jordan. West Jordan charged a fee of \$16,576.00 as a condition for approval.

The authority for imposing the fee is found in West Jordan City Ordinance 33 §9-C-8 (Appendix A). Plaintiffs claim that the ordinance is unconstitutional. Plaintiffs seek a refund of the \$16,576.00 fee. The complaint was brought as a class action.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The trial court entered judgment for West Jordan. Call seeks to have that judgment reversed, and judgment

entered in his favor. Call also seeks to have the case certified as a class action.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

This court has previously written two opinions on this case. In the first case, the Utah Supreme Court affirmed a judgment of dismissal by the trial court. Call v. City of West Jordan, (Call I), 606 P.2d 217 (Utah 1979). That case is attached as Appendix B. Thereafter, the Court granted rehearing. Call v. City of West Jordan (Call II), 614 P.2d 1257 (Utah 1980). That case is attached as Appendix C.

After remand, the case was tried to the court. During pre-trial proceedings, the Court appointed a special master. The initial report of the special master is very crucial to this case. The report is attached as Appendix D. Judge Dee entered judgment for West Jordan. Call appeals.

After Call II was decided, this Court decided three similar cases. Banberry Dev. Corp. v. South Jordan City, 631 P.2d 899 (Utah 1981), (Appendix E); Lafferty v. Payson City, 642 P.2d 376 (Utah 1982), (Appendix F); and Patterson v. Alpine City, 663 P.2d 95 (Utah 1983), (Appendix G). These cases are each attached as exhibits because they are closely intertwined with this case.

FACTS

A. Composition of the City of West Jordan

West Jordan is not a homogenous community. It is made up from several different sub-communities. There is

the original, or old-timers' community which has existed for many years. There are the newcomers' subdivisions. There is a rural farming community. There is also a business and light manufacturing community (r. 673 at p.5 and p.40, see also r. 673, Tables 1, 2, 3, compare defendant's Exhibit 1).

B. Recreation for Old-timers

West Jordan has one central park of fifty acres. For the most part, that park serves the old-timers. (r. 673 at p. 20).

C. Flood Control for Old-timers

The old-timers utilize an existing flood control system of canals, ditches and storm sewers. It appears that the old existing flood control system has long since been paid off (plaintiff's Exhibit 10).

D. Growth of West Jordan

West Jordan has been experiencing moderate growth. The population in 1970 was 6946. It is estimated that the population will be 18,000.00 in 1995 (r. 673 at p.4, Table 1). This projected growth requires additional facilities for parks and flood control (r. 597-598, 611-626).

E. Traditional Funding for New Facilities

West Jordan has a variety of resources for funding the new facilities:

1. General Bonding Power: The City has \$35 million in unused bonding power, (plaintiff's Exhibit 7, transmittal letter from Allan E. Tolman);

2. Flood Control Bonding Power: The City has \$2 million in unused flood control bonding power (r. 599 see also plaintiff's Exhibit 7);
3. Flood Control Assistance: The City receives \$110,000.00 per year from Salt Lake County for flood control assistance (plaintiff's Exhibit 10, "Storm Sewer Funding");
4. Storm Sewer Fees: West Jordan receives approximately \$219,000.00 per year in storm sewer fees (Exhibit 10 "Storm Sewer Funding").

F. New Subdivision Fees

In 1974, West Jordan formulated a plan to expand its flood control system. This was to be done by building a series of detention basins (r. 610-626).

West Jordan did not use traditional funding sources for the detention basins (see paragraph E above). Instead, West Jordan has resorted to a special tax on subdividers (r. 622-623). Call challenges the constitutionality of that special tax.

POINT I

WEST JORDAN HAD THE BURDEN
OF PRODUCING EVIDENCE

In a traditional trial, the plaintiff (Call) would have the burden of going forward with evidence. That traditional burden was reversed in this case. Here, West

Jordan had the burden of producing evidence. There were three reasons for this shift in the burden:

A. Discovery Sanctions

The primary reason for shifting the burden is that West Jordan frustrated discovery. Therefore, Judge Rigtrup reversed the normal burden as a sanction (see R. 1171-1173; see also r. 1442, 1444, 1446, 1448, 1450-51, 1455-56, 1458, 1460-61, 1463-66, 1468-70, 1472-74). Judge Rigtrup's pre-trial order is attached as Appendix H.

Specifically, Judge Rigtrup ruled that:

1. The trial is hereby bifurcated into two phases.
2. At the first phase, defendant shall have the burden of producing evidence.

The trial court reconfirmed Judge Rigtrup's ruling:

The order which was signed by Judge Rigtrup reverses the usual order of trial and this Court is bound by that order that was signed requiring that the defendants herein proceed as though they were plaintiffs and put on their evidence as to what they've done with the funds which were taken from the developers (September 1, 1982 Transcript at p.3).

B. Trust Theory

West Jordan does not keep the seven percent subdivider fee in any segregated or restricted account. Rather, West Jordan simply lumps the money into its general fund.

In the original appeal, Call challenged that practice of mixing funds. This Court held that:

Although the money which was collected from the plaintiffs in this case was deposited in the City's general

fund, it should not be assumed that the money thus becomes usable for other purposes by the City and is of no special benefit to the area sought to be subdivided. On the contrary . . . if money is collected from the public for a specific purpose, it becomes a trust fund committed to the carrying out of that purpose. 606 P.2d at 220

It is well settled that a trustee has the duty of producing evidence regarding the funds held in the trust. This Court has held:

It is the duty of a trustee to keep full, accurate and orderly records and when any question arises as to their sufficiency or accuracy, the burden is upon him to show the correctness of his accounts and doubts may be resolved adversely to him, Walker v. Walker, 17 Ut.2d 53, 404 P.2d 253 (1965).

C. Practical Considerations

There are certain practical reasons for shifting the burden. The financial records are all in the possession of West Jordan. Call cannot attack those financial records until they are produced.

This Court appears to have already recognized that principle:

As the information that must be used to assure that subdivision fees are within the standard of reasonableness is most accessible to the municipality, that body should disclose the basis of its calculations to whoever challenges the reasonableness of the subdividers fees. Banberry Development Corp. v. South Jordan City, 631 P.2d 899, 904 (Utah, 1981).

POINT II

WEST JORDAN MUST LOSE IF IT FAILS TO MEET ITS BURDEN OF PRODUCING EVIDENCE

The Court must find against West Jordan if it is unable to meet the burden of producing evidence.

This Court has held:

[S]ome situations . . . require the party who does not have the burden of persuasion to produce prima facie evidence of the non-existence of such fact in order to support a finding in his favor on such issue. In re Swan, 4 Ut.2d 277, 293 P.2d 682, 686 (1956).

The Court continued:

In other words, the Court must find the facts against a party who fails to satisfy his burden and such finding does not have to be supported by positive evidence. Id. at 686

Recently, this Court affirmed that rule. Even though it involved a bailment issue, the basic procedural rules governing the burden of producing evidence should be the same. The Court held that when the burden of producing evidence is shifted to defendant (as in the present case) and the defendant offers no evidence, the issue must be resolved in favor of the plaintiff, Staheli Farms v. Farmers' Cooperative of Southern Utah, 655 P.2d 680 (Utah 1982).

Speaking of the burden of producing evidence, Wigmore gives the following summary:

He [the judge] may require the opponent [defendant in this case] to produce evidence, under penalty of losing the case by direction of the judge. A duty of producing evidence, under this penalty for default has now arisen for the opponent. 9 Wigmore on Evidence, §2487 p. 294.

If all of these statutes are viewed together . . . it seems plain enough that the ordinance in question is within the scope of the authority and responsibility of the city government Emphasis added Call I, supra at 119.

In other words, the legislature has delegated taxing power only if each of those statutes are satisfied. If not, the chain is broken and the delegation is void. The last statute in this chain of delegation states:

The Planning Commission shall prepare a regulation governing the subdivision of land within a municipality. A public hearing thereon shall be held by the legislative body, after which the legislative body may adopt said regulation for the municipality, Utah Code Ann. §10-9-25 (1953).

After the decision in Call I, Call amended the complaint to include the following allegation:

47. Plaintiffs allege that Ordinance No. 33 was not prepared by the West Jordan City Planning Commission and that no public hearing was held on Ordinance 33 prior to its adoption, as required by the aforementioned statute, and that Ordinance No. 33 is therefore void and invalid, (r. 339).

Thus, the issue in Call I was whether the legislature had delegated power to the defendant to impose the fee. This Court held that taxing power was delegated if a public hearing was held, and if the Planning Commission prepared the ordinance. Call now claims that the ordinance is invalid because those procedural steps were not followed.

B. There is No Evidence of Any Public Hearing and No Evidence That the Ordinance was Prepared by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

There is no evidence in the record of any public hearing on the issue of the seven percent subdivider fee. There is no evidence in the record that the Planning and Zoning Commission prepared the ordinance.

After West Jordan completed its evidence Judge Dee clearly agreed that there was never any public hearing; and that there was never any action by the Planning and Zoning Commission:

. . . no evidence was specifically given to the Court during this hearing concerning the preparation of the ordinance by or under the direction of the Zoning and Planning or Planning and Zoning Commission, and there was no evidence given to the Court during this hearing about a public hearing, (Sept. 2, 1982 Transcript, at p. 72).

West Jordan will likely rely on the findings signed by Judge Dee some months later. (R. 1500 paragraph 22) However, those "canned" findings were prepared by West Jordan, and mechanically signed by Judge Dee some months after hearing the evidence. That practice has been criticized: Kelson v. United States, 503 F.2d 1291 (10th Cir. 1974); G.M. Leasing Corp. v. United States, 514 F.2d 935 (10th Cir. 1975).

Nevertheless, it makes little difference whether Judge Dee signed those "canned" findings. There is simply no evidence in the record to support a finding of a public hearing. Neither is there any evidence to support a finding that the Planning Commission prepared the ordinance.

C. The Failure to Follow Each
Statutory Step Renders the
Ordinance Invalid.

West Jordan can impose a fee if the Planning and Zoning Commission prepares the ordinance, and if a public hearing is held. However, West Jordan did not follow those statutory procedures. That failure is fatal. The ordinance is invalid.

Unlike the usual legislative hearing, the public hearing on a proposed zoning ordinance or amendment is required by law. A notice of hearing to a property owner may be required by the due process clauses of the state and federal constitutions . . . Failure of the legislative body to conduct an appropriate hearing, after notice which affords a fair opportunity to be heard, will render the regulation invalid, R. Anderson, American Law of Zoning 2d, (1976), Section 4.11.

Municipal corporations have no inherent power of taxation. On the contrary, municipal corporations possess with respect to taxation only such power as has been granted to them by the constitution or the statutes . . . It has been frequently stated that, as the power to tax is a governmental function, exercise thereof by a municipal corporation must rest upon a constitutional or statutory grant of power clearly expressed . . . And since the authority to levy taxes is an extraordinary one, it should never be left to implication unless it be a necessary implication. The grant relied on should be evident and unmistakable, and, if there is a doubt as to the existence of the power, such doubt will be resolved against the municipality and in favor of the taxpayer. McQuillin, The Law of Municipal Corporations, Section 44.05.

The grant of any power to tax, made by the state to a municipal corporation, will be, according to the rule accepted by virtually all authorities, construed strictly. A citizen cannot be subjected to the burden of taxation without clear warrant of law.

The power of taxation can be exercised only in the manner prescribed by law. If the authority of the municipality to tax is doubtful, the doubt must always be resolved against the tax. Id. at Section 44.13.

Utah case law is in accord. A case in point is Gwilliam v. Ogden City, 49 Utah 555, 164 P. 1022 (1917). In that case, the legislature delegated power to tax for municipal improvements. The statute required the city to publish a notice twenty days prior to imposing the tax. The city published a notice to levy taxes for a curb and gutter. However, the city did more than simply install a curb and gutter. The city lowered the grade of the street. Plaintiffs allege that the tax was illegal. The Utah Supreme Court concluded that:

. . . The things required of the city by [the statute] are jurisdictional, and unless they are complied with with reasonable strictness the city authorities are without power or jurisdiction to impose a special assessment or tax to defray the cost of the proposed improvement, 164 P. at 1024.

Gwilliam is a vintage case. However, the law has not changed. More recently, our Supreme Court decided the case of Lewis v. Kanab City, 523 P.2d 417 (Utah 1974). In that case, Kanab desired to raise money for a curb and gutter project.

The legislature had delegated power to municipalities to levy a tax for such improvements. However, that statute required the city to follow certain specific steps before assessing the tax. One step required a board of equalization and review. Another step required that notice be mailed to each property owner. Kanab City failed to follow those procedural steps. The Court held that Kanab City had no power to tax unless each of the procedural steps was followed. The tax was therefore invalidated.

The final chapter on this issue was written just months ago in the case of Patterson v. Alpine City, 663 P.2d 95 (Utah 1983). Patterson is almost identical to this case. In Patterson, the municipality had assessed certain sewer fees. Power to impose those fees was delegated from the State for use only where an ordinance was passed by roll call vote. Alpine City did not follow that statutory procedure and the sewer tax was therefore invalidated.

D. This Case Does Not Fall Under the
Broad Powers Granted in State v.
Hutchinson.

In a landmark decision, this Court has dramatically expanded municipal powers. State v. Hutchinson, 624 P.2d 1116 (Ut. 1980). However, Hutchinson was not a blank check for municipalities. The Hutchinson Court specifically held that:

Specific grants of authority may serve to limit the means available under the general welfare clause, for some limitation may be imposed on the exercise of power by directing the use of power in a particular manner.
624 P.2d at 1126

Thus, municipalities do not have any blanket power to impose subdivider fees. That power is granted with specific restrictions. We learn from Call I what those restrictions are. One restriction is a public hearing. A second restriction is action by the Planning and Zoning Commission. Since West Jordan enacted the ordinance without following the rules, the delegation of authority fails and the ordinance is invalid.

POINT IV

WEST JORDAN HAS FAILED TO
MEET ITS BURDEN OF SHOWING
THAT THE SEVEN PERCENT FEE
IS A RESTRICTED FUND

A. Statement of the Issue.

Defendant has no power to impose a fee on subdividers as a general revenue measure.

. . . A reasonable charge for a specific purpose is permissible, whereas a general fee that amounts to a revenue measure is not. Lafferty v. Payson City, 642 P.2d 376, 378 (Utah 1982)

West Jordan's City Ordinance specifies that the seven percent fee will be used for flood control and parks. Thus, a key issue is whether the fee is really used only for flood control and parks, or whether it is used for general revenue measures.

This same issue was preserved in Call I, where the Court stated:

. . . If money is collected from the public for a specific purpose, it becomes a trust fund for carrying out that purpose. 606 P.2d at 220.

The issue was also framed in the pre-trial order:

. . . defendant shall have the burden of producing evidence on the following issues . . .

D. Whether the seven percent subdivision fee was in practice used as a reasonable charge for a specific purpose, or whether it was in practice used as a general fee that amounts to a revenue measure. (R. 1030-1031)

B. Judge Dee's Findings

Judge Dee made the following finding:

Even though the individual dollars paid by the plaintiffs cannot be individually traced through the accounting records, the Court finds from a preponderance of the evidence that the monies were spent on flood control projects and parks and recreation areas for which the impact fee was assessed . . . (R. 1498)

C. Survey of the Evidence

This is not a matter where the evidence is in conflict or where the judge had to weigh evidence. There is not one iota of evidence to support Judge Dee's finding on this crucial issue.

Plaintiff's expert has testified that defendant did not segregate the funds or treat them as a trust fund. Plaintiff's expert has testified that West Jordan's records do not show how the money was used, (Nov. 18 Transcript, at 11-13 and 16-17).

The special master agrees with plaintiff's expert. The special master has concluded that the defendant's records do not account for these trust funds properly:

With the guidance of paragraphs (2), (4), and (9) of Sections 7-7-101, (Utah Code Annotated), I conclude that the fees should have had a special accounting treatment. First, I think the City should have prepared a fixed asset ledger that recorded a description of all fixed assets purchased, date of purchase, cost and any other applicable information . . . Secondly, I think that the Flood Control and Parks Fee receipts should have been recorded directly into a restricted equity account within the general fund, which would represent earmarked funds for flood control and parks. As the City determined allowable uses for these funds, they should have made a transfer from the restricted equity account to the revenue account, (plaintiff's Exhibit 9 at p. 9)./

West Jordan did introduce its accounting records. However, those accounting records simply do not answer the question of where or how the seven percent subdivision fee was spent. The only testimony on that issue is as follows:

Q. (By Mr. DeBry) Okay, based upon all the exhibits you've seen at trial, based upon generally accepted accounting principles, based upon all the testimony you've heard at trial, do you have an opinion whether the plaintiffs' 7% fee was spent on any flood control or any park project?

A. I can't form an opinion.

Q. Why not?

A. Because as I stated before, there's no issue that they built these projects, the issue is I don't know whose money was spent. The fund is self-balancing, yes, but I don't know whether we spent a particular sum on the Mayor's car, or whether we spent it on this project, (Nov. 18 Transcript, at p. 16-17).

1. In an action to be tried without a jury, the Court ~~may~~ accept the master's findings of fact unless clearly erroneous.

Rule 53(c)(2) U.R.C.P. *Butler* 2001.

The Master has agreed it is impossible to make any analysis based on those records:

To accomplish Step 3, I would have to determine if any general defendant obligation for benefit to subdividers existed for each flood control and park transaction and project. Since this information is not provided in the existing accounting records, it will have to come from other records and, again, from the help of a trained engineer. It is also possible that such information may not be available at all for some transactions, therefore, the analysis would not be possible [Emphasis added.] (plaintiff's Exhibit 9 at p. 7).

D. Summary

West Jordan had the burden of producing evidence to show that the seven percent fee was used for Flood Control and Parks. West Jordan did not meet that burden. Two qualified C.P.A.s (Call's expert and the special master) testified that they cannot determine where or how the money was spent. If the expenditures were not restricted, they amount to more general revenue measures.

POINT V

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