1983

## John Call and Clark Jenkins v. City of West Jordan : Respondent's Brief

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

#### THE "REASONABLENESS" OF THE "IMPACT FEE" ASSESSED IS THE ONLY ISSUE TO BE DECIDED

This Court in Call I has already upheld the facial constitutionality of the City's "impact fee" ordinance. 606 P.2d 217 (Utah 1979). That facial constitutionality was reaffirmed in the Call II decision. 614 P.2d 1258 (Utah 1980). However, in Call II, the the case was remanded for trial to determine---at Plaintiffs' request---the sole issue of the "as applied" constitutionality of the assessed fee. Justice Wilkins, writing for a unanimous court, wrote:

In this case the rule adopted by this Court in Call I, quoted ante, cannot be applied without **plaintiffs being given the opportunity to present evidence** to show that the dedication required of them had no reasonable relationship to the needs for flood control or parks and recreation facilities created by their subdivision . . .

614 P.2d at 1259. Emphasis added.

Notwithstanding the explicit rulings of this Court in both Call I and Call II and the clear direction as to the limited issue reserved for trial following remand, the Plaintiffs still are asserting that the "impact fee" ordinance is "unconstitutional" on its face.

Certainly the **doctrine of "the law of the case"** prevents a re-examination of these issues. That "doctrine" states that once a case has been adjudicated and appealed, the law as announced by the appellate court [this Court] ought to be followed for all subsequent proceedings in

that case. The purpose of the doctrine has been articulated by this Court in the case of **Richardson vs Grand Central Corporation**, 572 P.2d 395 (Utah 1977), in which the Court wrote:

The purpose of the doctrine of "the law of the case" is that in the interest of economy of time and efficiency of procedure, it is desirable to avoid the delays and difficulties involved in **repetitious contentions and rulings upon the same proposition in the same case.**

572 P.2d at 397. Emphasis added.

Certainly the Plaintiffs' continual claims of the invalidity of the "impact fee" ordinance---when the constitutionality of the ordinance has been already upheld TWICE by this Court in this case involving these SAME PLAINTIFFS---are "repetitious contentions" which the doctrine seeks to avoid. The decisions of this Court in Call I and Call II must be held to be binding upon the Plaintiffs, especially when they challenged, in a declaratory judgment action, the validity of the "impact fee" ordinance under a number of theories. The Court has ruled that the ordinance was valid and constitutional. To allow the Plaintiffs to re-litigate those issues or to inject new issues (which should have been filed originally in the declaratory judgment action in 1978) is patently wasteful of precious judicial resources; this "Johnny come lately" approach cannot be countenanced. Otherwise, there will be no end to this litigation.

The Plaintiffs rely heavily on this Court's decision in the case of **Banberry Development Corporation vs South Jordan City**, 631 P.2d 899 (Utah 1981), decided after Call I and Call II were announced. This Court, in **Banberry**, made it absolutely clear what the issues were to be in THIS LITIGATION, when the Court wrote:

In **Call v. City of West Jordan**, Utah, 606 P.2d 217 (1979), on rehearing 614 P.2d 1257 (1980), this Court upheld the validity of a city ordinance that required subdividers, as a condition of plat approval, to dedicate certain proposed subdivision land to the city. . . . In remanding the case for trial on the constitutionality of the ordinance as applied . . ., this Court ruled that "the dedication should have some reasonable relationship to the need created by the subdivision."

631 P.2d at 905. Emphasis added.

The "reasonableness" of the "impact fee", "as applied" against the present Plaintiffs, is the sole issue for determination in this case. The Plaintiffs should not be allowed to re-litigate issues previously decided, even if those issues are somewhat disguised to mask their true character.

On the "reasonableness" issue, the Plaintiffs were "given the opportunity to resent evidence" to show the impact fee assessed against them was "unreasonable." The November 18, 1982 trial was that "opportunity." THE PLAINTIFFS PRESENTED NO EVIDENCE ON THE ISSUE. Accordingly, the trial court, upon timely motion by the Defendant, dismissed Plaintiffs' claims, held that the Plaintiffs had failed to prove by a preponderance of the evidence their claims, and held that "no cause of action had been shown", and that judgment should be entered in favor of the Defendant. [See the trial court's "Memorandum Decision" (Appendix "A", herein) and the discussion at Point II, below.]

#### POINT II

##### THE PLAINTIFFS FAILED TO SUSTAIN THEIR BURDEN TO SHOW THAT THE IMPACT FEE WAS UNREASONABLE

As indicated above, the issue reserved for trial by the Supreme Court was the "reasonableness" of the "impact fee" assessed against the Plaintiffs.

The Plaintiffs HAVE BEEN GIVEN the "opportunity to present evidence" concerning the "unreasonableness" of the West Jordan "impact fee". The November 18, 1982 trial was that "opportunity." THE PLAINTIFFS PRESENTED ABSOLUTELY NO EVIDENCE to show that the fee was unreasonable. This lack of evidence was predicted by Mr DeBry, counsel for the Plaintiffs, prior to the beginning of the presentation of his evidence. He remarked:

**Your Honor, our case this morning will be very short. It's the only case in my career that I remember where the testimony will be shorter than the opening statement.**

Emphasis added. Record at p. 1716.

Plaintiffs' only evidence presented was the testimony of the accountant, Mr. Sharkey. His twenty minutes of testimony [Record at 1720-1765.] can be summarized as follows:

#### DIRECT EXAMINATION

I am a certified public accountant and I have examined the West Jordan City records and exhibits previously admitted in this case. The aforementioned examination took approximately 23 hours. I also heard the testimony of the City's witnesses at the September 1st and 2nd evidentiary hearing. On the basis of my examination of the records and the exhibits admitted into evidence and the testimony of the City's witnesses from the September 1st and 2nd hearing, I am unable to formulate an opinion as to whether or not the monies collected pursuant to

the flood Control Impact Fee Ordinance of West Jordan from the present Plaintiffs were expended for flood control and parks purposes.

#### CROSS EXAMINATION

I found no evidence to show that any of the fees collected and deposited into the "flood control" account of the general fund were utilized for anything other than capital expenditures for flood control and parks and recreation area projects. I found no records indicating that expenditures were made for improper purposes. The City records, indicated that the fund balance in the flood control account was zeroed out each year at the end of the fiscal year. The City records showed that the City collected from developers approximately \$525,000 pursuant to the "impact fee" ordinance and deposited the same in the "flood control" account; the City records showed that the City expended from the flood control account within the general fund approximately \$1,200,000 for capital projects for flood control and parks and recreation areas.

Mr. Sharkey's testimony---at least as the same can be utilized for persuasive evidence for Plaintiffs' assertions--- can be summarized to a single sentence:

I am unable to formulate an opinion.

The Plaintiffs have had the "opportunity to present evidence" to show that there was "no reasonable relationship" between the "impact fee" paid and the needs their subdivision created. The trial court was correct in ruling that this evidence did not show by a preponderance of the evidence that the West Jordan Ordinance was "unreasonable."

The trial court complied with this Court's directive (i.e. to give the Plaintiffs an "opportunity to present evidence"). The Plaintiffs did not produce one recreation expert to testify. The Plaintiffs themselves (Mr John Call and Mr Clark Jenkins)---allegedly so aggrieved by the alleged unconstitutional application of the ordinance---did not testify!! Mr. Sharkey, the accountant, openly acknowledge that he was not an expert in these other disciplines and could give no testimony on those related issues. Record at 1764.

The Plaintiffs' sole evidence is the testimony of Mr. Sharkey concerning his inability to formulate an opinion. Had Plaintiffs truly been interested in proving the "unreasonableness" of the "impact fee", they could have hired an engineer to testify concerning the "unreasonableness" of that "impact fee." This the Plaintiffs did not do.

In his opening statement prior to the presentation of evidence, Mr. DeBry acknowledged to the court:

Now, we still have the burden of persuasion, we've got to persuade the court. But what we have to use to persuade the court with is their evidence. We've simply got to look at their records and their documents and their minutes, analyze that and use that material to persuade the court. Then it brings us down to our witnesses today, your honor. Our evidence will be very **short**. I have a certified public accountant who will take the stand. He will testify that he looked at all of their evidence, he has heard the evidence in the trial, he's looked at the exhibits, **and he cannot form any conclusions**, that based on the evidence they've given us, based on their own financial records, he cannot answer the questions set out by the **Banberry** court.

Record at pp. 1719-1720. Emphasis added.

The Defendants rely significantly upon the Master's Report. Yet the Master's Report was only A PRELIMINARY REPORT.[The preparation of the "final report" was expressly waived by the Plaintiffs. Record at 760.] In that Master's Report the Master himself realized that he would have to DO MORE THAN MERELY EXAMINE THE CITY'S ACCOUNTING RECORDS. Page 2 of the Master's Report [Exhibit 25] contains the following statement:

Since the information is not provided in the accounting records, it will have to come from other records and again from the help of a trained engineer.

Emphasis added. It is interesting to wonder where Plaintiffs assumed that the "accounting records" MUST show the "reasonableness" of the "impact fee". Call I and Call II didn't say that; **Banberry** didn't say that. Even the court-appointed Master---a certified public accountant, not a lawyer---recognized that HE WOULD HAVE TO DO MORE THAN LOOK AT THE CITY'S ACCOUNTING RECORDS to determine if the fee was "reasonable" or "unreasonable."

Yet the Plaintiffs' approach still continues to be "that it must be shown in the accounting records that the fee is 'reasonable' or else the City loses". [See the discussion at C, below.] The accounting records of the City reflect only monetary items; they do not reflect subjective issues such as the "benefits conferred" to a particular subdivision. To determine those "benefits conferred", one must---as the Master clearly indicated---consult with a trained engineer. THIS THE PLAINTIFFS DID NOT DO!

Plaintiffs produced but one witness, Mr. Sharkey, who indicated:

1. That the Master was correct in his analysis in that the Master would be required to talk to engineers. [Record at 1756]
2. That he had talked to the city engineer "for about ten minutes". [Record at 1757]
3. That he has never observed the Wescall Subdivision. [Record at 1763]
4. That he had no particular expertise concerning the needs created by the residents who live in the subdivision, those needs being parks and recreation facilities. [Record at 1764]
5. That he had no way of disputing the engineers testimony and analysis concerning run-off created by that subdivision. [Record at 1764]
6. That he had no technical expertise to know what kind of flood control problems the subdivision might create. [Record at 1764]
7. That he had taken much less time to inspect the City's records than was actually necessary.

This last point was correctly keyed upon by Judge Dee, who remarked:

THE COURT: I understand that in Mr. Sharkey's affidavit that it would take 50 to 100 hours and he didn't spend that time, he spent 8 hours.

Record at 1755.

Obviously the trial court judge was unconvinced by the inadequate preparation the Plaintiffs had arranged. The Plaintiffs had failed to show by a preponderance of the evidence that the fee assessed against them was "unreasonable". The lack of evidence furnished by the Plaintiffs cannot contradict the evidence presented in the September 1982 hearings concerning the needs created by the Wescall development. Indeed, Plaintiffs' counsel in his opening remarks admitted that he had no evidence on these issues. [Record at 1717-1718]

The Plaintiffs assert that the Defendant had failed to comply with the pre-trial order of Judge Rigtrup. On the contrary, the trial judge (Judge Dee) specifically found that the City had complied with the pre-trial order of Judge Rigtrup. Judge Dee stated:

. . . I have already ruled on the question whether I thought he's complied with Judge Rigtrup's order, and I think he has, . . .

Record at 1711-1712. Emphasis added.

However, the Plaintiffs ignore the burdens placed UPON THEM by the pre-trial order. The pre-trial order (Paragraph 6) specifically provided:

. . . the Plaintiffs shall have the burden of proof with respect to each matter listed below:

A. Whether the 7% fee required of Plaintiffs had any reasonable relationship to the needs for flood control, parks and recreation facilities created by their subdivision. (Citation to cases omitted)

B. Whether the 7% fee has required the newly developed properties to bear more than their equitable share of capital cost in relation to the benefits conferred. (Citation to **Banberry** case omitted.) . . .

Obviously, the Plaintiffs have failed to comply with the pre-trial order which recited the obligations which had been imposed upon the Plaintiffs by **Call II** and **Banberry**.

All the Plaintiffs presented was testimony concerning the lack of documentation within the City records. Mr. Sharkey was unable to express an opinion concerning whether or not the City spent the money for the projects indicated. Certainly, the inability to express an opinion does not prove by a preponderance of evidence that the "impact fee" was not spent in the manner the City had claimed. Indeed, by Mr. Sharkey's own admission, the City took in approximately \$525,000 from developers as monies pursuant to the "impact fee" ordinance. During that same time the City expended almost \$1,200,000 for flood control and parks projects. Mr. Sharkey admitted that the City's practice was to zero out the account at the end of each year. [See Finding No. 10]. Mr. Sharkey testified that he uncovered no evidence to show that any expenditures from the "flood control account" were made for anything other than the capital improvements for parks and recreation projects represented by the numerous exhibits. [Finding No. 11]

Certainly the inability to express an opinion would perhaps be critical if the City had spent LESS on such projects than it took in from developers. But that is not the case here; the City spent MORE---hundreds or thousands of dollars more---than it took in. This difference was made up by a "subsidy" from other general revenue sources of the City. [Finding No. 9]. Indeed, the development impact fee assessed against the developers, including the Plaintiffs, simply WAS NOT SUFFICIENT TO ADEQUATELY ADDRESS THE NEEDS CREATED BY THE DEVELOPMENT. [Record at 1613] This, however, does not show that the fee was "unreasonable". If anything, it shows that the fee was "more than reasonable" and that the

developers were being subsidized. In actuality they were paying for less than the true impact they were creating. Certainly the showing made by the Plaintiffs was properly understood.

The City's response was and has always been that it was pooled with other monies so as to provide these flood control and parks and recreation projects. This pooling has certainly been allowed. In specific response, the City purchased the Booth property immediately adjacent to the Wescall Subdivision. The purchase of the "Booth Property" was made expressly because of the development of the Wescall subdivision and one other residential subdivision. See Exhibit 13-D. Testimony was given by Mr. Olson that the Wescall residents would require 1.45 acres of additional park area. [Record at 1700] The cost for this real estate so purchase at \$9,000 per acre would be in excess of \$13,000. This expenditure was made concerning the Booth property in anticipation of the Wescall Subdivision being approved the following month. [Record at 1556-1558, 1681, 1684, 1697, 1700] The \$13,000 figure DOES NOT include the capital expenditures for the park which may run thousands of dollars more, nor does it include any fee concerning the flood-control costs incurred by the Wescall development.

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